
GOVERNOR'S COUNCIL ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 
Executive Committee Meeting 

 
LOCATION 

Governor's Council Conference Room 
3601 C Street 

Anchorage, Alaska 
Teleconference 

 
 

Meeting Date 
September 6, 2011 

 
 
 

Attendees: 
 

Eric Gebhart, Chair 
Ric Nelson 
Kathy Fitzgerald 
Lucy Odden 
David Flynn 
Tonja Updike 
Amy Simpson 

 
 
Staff: 
 

Millie Ryan, Executive Director 
Teresa Holt 
Jennifer Jones 
Josie Boggs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:   Paula DiPaolo 
       Peninsula Reporting 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and            September 6, 2011  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

2 

 
 
Call to Order – 12:05 p.m. 
Roll Call 
 
INTRODUCTIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS OR GOOD NEWS 
 
Lucy Odden announced that she is turning 50 tomorrow.  She also 
announced that she will be going to Washington, D.C. in November to 
participate in the Alliance for Full Participation. 
 
APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 
Lucy Odden corrected the agenda to note that the minutes to approve are 
from July 11, and August 1, 2011.  The agenda stated June 22 instead of 
July 11. 
 
Kathy Fitzgerald MOVED to approve the agenda as amended.  Approval of 
the agenda PASSED. 
 
APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE PAST MEETINGS 
 
Amy Simpson MOVED to approve the minutes from the July 11, and 
August 1, 2011, meetings.  The motion PASSED. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Millie Ryan reported that they submitted an Employment Systems Change 
grant for youth and young adults with developmental disabilities to the 
Administration on Developmental Disabilities. 
 
Millie also stated that right now there is an alert regarding the Combating 
Autism Act.  The act needs to be reauthorized and is complicated by the 
feds decision to include funding for the LEND program in this act.  It will be 
difficult to continue the LEND program without this reauthorization. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Five-Year State Plan 
 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and            September 6, 2011  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

3 

Millie Ryan stated that the Five-Year State Plan was due August 15th, and 
Carrie Predeger and Teresa Holt did a great job.  Millie stated that she will 
be participating in an AADD peer review, and there are teams of people 
that will be reviewing a certain number of plans.  She will be reviewing the 
plans from Region VIII.  She noted that they will be getting feedback from 
the reviewers who will look at their plan. 
 
FY’13 Request for Recommendations  
 
Millie Ryan stated that the recommendations were presented to the Trust 
Finance Committee.  The Trust meets September 8th and 9th to finalize its 
recommendations.  Millie stated that the Council has a half hour to present 
on the 8th.   
 
Meeting with Administration 
 
Millie stated that they will be meeting with Commissioner Streur at 2:30 
today.  He has been sent the budget recommendations in advance as well 
as the report that Carrie Predeger pulled together on the high-cost waivers.  
The group discussed denoting how many high-cost waivers there are as 
compared to the total number of waivers in the state.  Millie stated they also 
want to discuss intensive active treatment during this meeting.  
 
Millie stated that she has also been working with the Governor’s office to 
get a meeting scheduled.  The Governor’s office asked that the Council 
meet with Karen Rehfeld, who is in charge of Management and Budget, to 
talk about budgetary items.  They are also trying to set up a meeting with 
Mike Lesmann to discuss policy issues.  Millie noted that they are also 
going to try to get in touch with P.J. Fordslack, chair of the SESA board, to 
talk to her about her impressions of her meeting with the commissioner. 
 
Teresa Holt noted that the State Board of Education meeting is next week 
in Anchorage, and the commissioner will be there. 
 
Millie Ryan stated that she received an e-mail from Cheryl Walsh who 
stated that DVR recommended funding for job coaching for Project 
SEARCH.  Commissioner Bishop is supportive of the idea. 
 
Millie stated that she received communication from Anna Kim, who is 
currently working for the Department of Education and Early Development, 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and            September 6, 2011  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

4 

and she asked them about the write up that the Council is doing around 
transition services. 
 
Amy Simpson stated that the Part C regulations were released today.  It is 
932 pages long and she hasn’t read through the entire document yet.  She 
noted that it might require them to look at the state regulations. 
 
Council Bylaws 
 
Eric Gebhart stated that he received comments from all the committees 
regarding suggestions to the bylaws. 
 
Eric noted that from the MTARS review, the Council was asked to consider 
term limits in the bylaws. 
 
Over the course of discussion, the following suggestions were made: 
 

• Term limits of three consecutive three-year terms, but could be 
extended to a fourth term based on the Council Chair’s 
recommendation to the Governor.  Publically appointed seats are 
exempt from this rule. 

• After term expires, may reapply for reappointment after taking one 
year off. 

• Council members not reappointed may continue to serve on a 
committee. 

• A suggestion was made for all Council members to attend Partners in 
Policymaking training to help build leadership within the Council. 

 
Rural Services Ad Hoc Committee 
 
Eric Gebhart stated that currently the committee is an ad hoc committee 
and has not been officially made a standing committee.  If it is made into a 
standing committee, it needs to be added to the bylaws. 
 
A discussion ensued as to whether or not the Rural Services Ad Hoc 
Committee should be made a standing committee. 
 
Overall, people were in agreement that rural issues are a major factor in 
the state of Alaska, and some felt that it was important enough for there to 
be a standalone committee.  Others felt that each of the standing 
committees could make a component of their work load rural issues as they 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and            September 6, 2011  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

5 

relate to their committee focus.  After extensive discussion, it was 
determined that this issue should be brought before the full Council for 
discussion.   
 
Election of Chairs 
 
Tonja Updike stated that it is the Education Committee and the EIC’s 
suggestion to have election of committee chairs happen on the odd years 
of the Council Chair election in the hopes that it would make the transition 
smoother. 
 
Eric Gebhart also noted that another suggestion was for the Council to 
elect all the chairs as opposed to the committee’s electing the Education 
and EIC chairs, and the Council chair appointing the DD chair.   
 
There was discussion that it is helpful for the Council Chair to elect 
committee chairs because they have control over the balance of the 
committees. 
 
Teresa Holt noted that the Legislative Committee suggested that the chair 
be elected on the years that coincide with the legislative cycle. 
 
Recommendation:   All committee chairs should be elected for two-year 

terms.  When that two-year cycle begins will be  
 determined at a later time. 
 
Special Education Service Agency  
 
Eric Gebhart noted that page four of the bylaws that relate to governing 
SESA needs to be amended. 
 
Eric Gebhart stated that he will make all the proposed revisions to the 
bylaws and will send them out to the Executive Committee for review.  
They will then be presented to the full Council in October. 
 
October 2011 Council Meeting 
 
Millie Ryan reviewed the draft October 2011 Council meeting agenda.   
 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and            September 6, 2011  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

6 

She noted that one item she did not include was a discussion of the 
congressional supercommittee, and she recommended that they add that 
discussion. 
 
Eric Gebhart suggested moving the Robert’s Rules of Order training from 
the last day to the morning of the first day.   
 
Millie Ryan also stated that she would like all Council members to attend 
the new-member orientation. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Trust Advocacy Summit 
 
Millie Ryan stated that typically members of the Executive Committee have 
attended the Trust Advocacy Summit, with Legislative Committee members 
being back up in the event an Executive Committee member cannot attend.  
The Trust Advocacy Summit will take place January 30 and 31 in Juneau 
the week after the full Council meeting, so some people may not be able to 
travel back to Juneau that next week. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Chair’s Report 
 
Eric Gebhart reported that Executive Committee members need to refresh 
themselves with their list of Council contacts that they need to be in touch 
with on a regular basis to keep all Council members involved. 
 
Eric also referred people to the calendar of events they have created to 
keep everyone abreast of upcoming events.  There was also a discussion 
regarding calendars for the committees to denote upcoming committee 
activities. 
 
Eric Gebhart stated that he would like a list of the members of each of the 
committees so that he knows who is on there and can work to fill any 
designated seats that may be vacant. 
 
Committee Reports: 
(Due to time constraints, committee chairs were unable to give full reports.) 
 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and            September 6, 2011  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

7 

Legislative Committee 
 
David Flynn noted that they have created draft position papers for three of 
their priorities, but he wondered if a fourth position paper needed to be 
created.  Millie Ryan stated that they will have to wait and see what gets 
into the Governor’s budget before making that determination. 
 
Early Intervention Committee 
 
Amy Simpson asked whether or not there was a designated time for them 
to review those legislative issues they have been pushing for an extended 
period of time, but haven’t gone anywhere.  Millie Ryan noted that they 
have been making progress on some, but others they may need to revisit to 
develop a different strategy.  Much of this will be discussed at the October 
Council meeting. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
 
Millie Ryan briefly reviewed her upcoming schedule as follows: 
 

• Presenting at a home and community-based conference and at the 
Centers for Workers with Disabilities on the results of their Medicaid 
Infrastructure grant. 

• Participating in the state review team for AADD. 
• Attending the executive director’s retreat in Chicago. 
• Performance Measures Team for AADD. 

 
TIME AND DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next Executive Committee meeting will be face to face during the full 
Council meeting at a luncheon meeting on October 6th at 11:30. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:14 p.m. 


